AGENDA ITEM 2:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

May 6, 2025, Regular Meeting

May 6, 2025, Closed Session

May 8, 2025 Special Meeting — Budget Work Session
May 9, 2025, Special Meeting — Budget Work Session













































AGENDA ITEM 3:

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 20, 2025, AGENDA




AGENDA ITEM 4:

PuBLIC COMMENT
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Public Comment will last up to 1-hour dependent upon the number of speakers.



AGENDA ITEM 5:

PuBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE FY 2026 PROPOSED
BUDGET

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on the Manager's Recommended
Budget for Fiscal Year 2026. At the conclusion of the public hearing, you may wish to schedule
an additional work session to make any additional changes prior to staff preparing the budget
ordinance for adoption at one of the Board’s June meetings. Enclosed is a copy of the changes
made by the Board and staff during the budget work sessions.

Direction from the Board is requested.









AGENDA ITEM 6:

APPALCART CONTRACTS FOR FY 2026
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Craig Hughes, Appal CART Director, will present the contracts for transportation services for
the Project on Aging and Social Services Departments for FY 2026. The proposed rate for the
Project on Aging, Department of Social Services, and other County functions remains the same at
$2.85 per direct mile.

Mr. Hughes will present a contract for the POA meal delivery. The rate remains the same at $2.00
per direct mile.

Board action is required to approve the contracts.

































For FY 25/26

Watauga County Project on Aging-Meals

This Agreement, effective this
13t day of July 2025, by and between
AppalCART and

Agency Name: Project on Aging — Watauga County

Contact Person: Angie Boitnotte

Address: 132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A Boone, NC 28607

Phone: 265.8092 Fax: 264-2060 E-mail: angie.boitnotte@watgov.org

Rate: $2.00 per direct vehicle mile

3k 3k 3k ok ok ok 3k ok 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k ok 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 5k ok ok 3k 3k 3k ok ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k 3k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k ok 5k 3k 3k %k ok 3k 3k 3k 3k >k 5k ok 3k %k %k 3k %k %k %k *k

NORTH CAROLINA
AGREEMENT
WATAUGA COUNTY
THIS AGREEMENT, effective this 12 day of July, 2025 and lasting through the 30th day of June, 2026, by
and between AppalCART, hereinafter referred to as the Authority; and Watauga County on behalf of the
PROJECT ON AGING, hereinafter referred to as Project on Aging;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Authority and the

Project on Aging do agree as follows:



Section 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued

implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in Watauga County, to state the
terms, conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which the Authority will provide
transportation services for the Project on Aging.

Section 2. Adoption of Required Provision. This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North

Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART Agreement under Project Number 26-CT-007, and
subsequent agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the Authority.

The Authority shall comply with audit requirements as described in N.C.G.S 146C-6-22 and OMB Circular A-133
and shall disclose all information required by 42 USC 455.104, or 42 USC 455.105, or 42 USC 455.106.

Section 3. Scope of Work.

1. The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00AM and 6:00PM Monday through Friday.

The Authority will provide regularly scheduled transportation of meals for the Project on Aging as may be

mutually agreed upon. The routes and schedules may be modified from time to time by the Authority in
order to provide for a more effective and efficient provision of service to the citizens of
Watauga County.

2. The Authority will be responsible for maintaining insurance to meet the requirements of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, FTA, and the Project on Aging with respect to liability
insurance, vehicle inspections, and drivers including licensing, background checks, and drug and alcohol
testing. It is agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier passenger

vehicles by the North Carolina Utilities Commission. The Authority’s Insurance Company is NCACC RMP.L&P

Policy # LP-AP-473-16.
3. First lien holder on all vehicles titled to the Authority shall be the North Carolina Department of

Transportation — Integrated Mobility Division (NCDOT-IMD).



10.

The Authority will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe,
efficient and businesslike manner, and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control
regarding safety and whether or not the routes should be followed on days of adverse weather.

The Authority will provide driver training for new drivers and refresher courses for long-term drivers, to
ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR, first aid, defensive driving and
preventive vehicle maintenance.

Vehicles will be equipped with a land transportation communication radio system.

The Authority shall commence performance of this contract on the_1st day of July, 2025, and shall complete,
renew, or amend this contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART under Project Number 26-CT-007.

By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be $2.00 per direct vehicle mile. The Authority will
submit itemized invoices to the Project on Aging on a monthly basis, payment of terms is thirty (30) days net.
All costs charged to the Project on Aging, including any approved services performed by the Authority, shall
be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, canceled checks, deposit slips, or
vouchers evidencing in detail the nature and property of the charges. The Authority will use billing codes
specified by the Project on Aging on invoices, and will report no-shows daily, and cancellations on a monthly
basis.

The Authority shall retain all records pertaining to this Project for a period of three (3) years from the date of
this Agreement. The Authority shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation — Integrated
Mobility Division and the Watauga County Project on Aging to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other
data and records with regard to the Project and to audit the books, records and accounts of the Authority
pertaining to the Project.

Passenger complaints should be reported to the Authority’s Director 828.297.1300 x 104

director@appalcart.com



mailto:director@appalcart.com

11. Names of Board Members and Managers are posted and updated at www.appalcart.com, any changes will

be reported to the Project on Aging.
12. If the Authority becomes excluded from participation in this agreement, the Project on Aging will be
promptly notified.

Section 4. Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party

sixty (60) days advance written notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:
Braxton Eggers
Watauga County Commissioners Chair
ATTEST:
Anita Fogle
Clerk to the County Commissioners
BY:
Frank David V
ATTEST: AppalCART Board Chair

Anna Goddard
Clerk to the AppalCART Board


http://www.appalcart.com/

For FY 25/26
Watauga County: Non-Medicaid Transportation
This Agreement, effective this
13t day of July, 2025, by and between
AppalCART and

Agency Name: Watauga County

Contact person: Deron Geougue

Address: 814 West King St, Suite 205 Boone, NC 28607

Phone: 265-8000 E-mail: Deron.Geougue@watgov.org

Rate ---- $2.85 per direct mile
Kkkkkkokkokkokkokkokkokkkkkkkkkkskkskkskokskskskokskkskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskskokskokskkkskkskskskkskkk

THIS AGREEMENT, effective this 1st day of July, 2025 and lasting through the_30th day of June, 2026, by

and between AppalCART, hereinafter referred to as the Authority; and Watauga County;
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Authority and the
County do agree as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of Agreement. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the continued

implementation of a consolidated, coordinated Public Transportation Project in Watauga County, to state the
terms, conditions and mutual undertakings of the parties as to the manner in which the Authority will provide
transportation services for the County.

Section 2. Adoption of Required Provision. This Agreement incorporates the required provisions of the North

Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART Agreement under Project Number 26-CT-007, and

subsequent agreements between the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the Authority.



The Authority shall comply with audit requirements as described in N.C.G.S 146C-6-22 and OMB Circular A-133
and shall disclose all information required by 42 USC 455.104, or 42 USC 455.105, or 42 USC 455.106.
Section 3. Scope of Work.
1. The normal hours of operation shall be between 6:00AM and 6:00PM Monday through Friday.
The Authority will provide regularly scheduled transportation services for the County as may be mutually
agreed upon. Flexible scheduling for special activities may be implemented as deemed appropriate as long
as at least three (3) days notice is given. Ten (10) days notice is preferred for out of town trips. The routes
and schedules may be modified from time to time by the Authority in order to provide for a more effective
and efficient provision of service to the citizens of Watauga County.
2. The Authority will be responsible for maintaining insurance to meet the requirements of
the North Carolina Department of Transportation, FTA, and the County with respect to liability insurance,
vehicle inspections, and drivers including licensing, background checks, and drug and alcohol testing. It is
agreed that coverage limits will meet the amount required for common carrier passenger vehicles by the
North Carolina Utilities Commission. Insurance Company is:

NCACC RMP.L&P Policy # LP-AP-473-16.

3. The Authority will ensure that the vehicles will be equipped, maintained, operated and managed in a safe,
efficient and businesslike manner, and the parties do further agree that the driver shall have the final control
regarding safety and whether or not the routes should be followed on days of adverse weather.

4. The Authority will provide driver training for new drivers and refresher courses for long-term drivers, to
ensure that all drivers have adequate knowledge of passenger safety, CPR, first aid, defensive driving and
preventive vehicle maintenance.

5. The Authority shall commence performance of this contract on the 1% day of July, 2025, and shall complete,
renew, or amend this contract as appropriate to complete the terms, conditions and required provisions of

the North Carolina Department of Transportation/AppalCART under Project Number 26-CT-007.



6. By mutual agreement, the unit rate of said service shall be $2.85 per direct mile. The Authority will submit
itemized invoices to the County on a monthly basis, payment of terms is thirty (30) days net.

7. The Authority shall retain all records pertaining to this Project for a period of three (3) years from the date of
this Agreement. The Authority shall permit North Carolina Department of Transportation — Integrated
Mobility Division and County to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other data and records with regard
to the Project and to audit the books, records and accounts of the Authority pertaining to the Project.

8. Passenger complaints should be reported to the Authority’s Director 828.297.1300 x 104

director@appalcart.com

9. If the Authority becomes excluded from participation in this agreement, the County will be promptly
notified.

Section 4. Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement by giving the other party

sixty (60) days advance written notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY:
Braxton Eggers
Watauga County Commissioners Chair
ATTEST:
Anita Fogle
Clerk to the County Commissioners
BY:
Frank David V
ATTEST: AppalCART Board Chair

Anna Goddard
Clerk to the AppalCART Board


mailto:director@appalcart.com

AGENDA ITEM 7:

VAYA UPDATE
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Dustin Burleson, VAYA, will provide an update to the Board regarding VAYA. The report
is for information only; therefore, no action is required at this time.



VAVA

VAYAHEALTH

Watauga Board
of County
Commissioners

Dustin Burleson

Community Relations Regional Director
Vaya Health

Spring 2025



Vaya Health
Plan/Medicaid Updates




e

Vaya Total Care

» As a Tailored Plan, Vaya Health is responsible for health, behavioral health
and pharmacy care for adult and youth plan members.

»Plan members have been diagnosed with a moderate to severe mental
health or substance use disorder or have an intellectual/developmental
disability.

»Vaya’s Network of Providers include hospitals/health systems, FQHCs, Health
Depts, primary and specialty care practices, behavioral health residential and
community providers and pharmacies across the State.

»Plan members can receive a Tailored Care Manager to help them connect to
the services, supports and resources needed for health and wellness.



e

Vaya Total Care

»Vaya Total Care Perks for Plan Members- VTC Perks are designed to support
members with a variety of health and wellbeing outside of services they
receive. Perks for eligible members include wellness, pregnancy, GED, safety
and non-medical transportation supports.

»Non-Emergency Medicaid Transportation(NEMT) for Physical and Behavioral
Health appointments for members.

»Healthy Opportunities Pilot administered by Impact Health can provide
additional supports for eligible Plan members in areas such as housing, food,
transportation and help for members experiencing interpersonal violence.




Child & Family Specialty Plan

The NCDHHS announced that Blue Cross Blue Shield will be the single Health
Plan serving youth and families involved in child welfare/foster care system.

* On December 11, 2024, NC DHHS provided an Amendment to the CFSP contract with BCBS
revealing the following timetable:

« Contract Period & Effective Dates

* Implementation Period: August 15, 2024 through November 30, 2025
« Contract Year 1: December 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026

» Contract Year 2: July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2027

» Contract Year 3: July 1, 2027 through June 30, 2028

» Contract Year 4: July 1, 2028 through June 30, 2029



Hurricane Helene
Recovery




HOPE 4 NC GRANT PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

The Crisis Counseling Assistance and Training Program (CCP) is a federally funded
supplemental program administrated by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security
(DHS) Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to fund mental health assistance
and training activities in areas that have been declared a major disaster.

The mission of the CCP is to assist individuals and communities in recovering from the
effects of disasters through the provision of community-based outreach and psycho-
educational services. The CCP supports short-term interventions that involve assisting
disaster survivors in understanding their current situation and reactions, mitigating stress,
developing coping strategies, accessing sources of emotional support, and encouraging
linkages with other individuals and agencies that help survivors in their recovery process.




HURRICANE IMPACTED COUNTIES WITHIN VAYA’S CATCHMENT

LINCOLN
RUTHERFORD T CABARRUS

STANLY
CLEVELAND ~ GASTON ..

BURG




Watauga Data for
FY 25-26 Q2




74

Child (0-12)

45

Adolescent (13-16)

Distinct Members Served by Age Group

54

Transitional Youth (17-24)

449

Adult (25-64)

59

Adult (65+)

10



Tailored Care Management
OP - Indiv Therapy

SA - Opioid Tx - daily

E/M OP visit

OP - Group Therapy

Mobile Crisis Management
Telehealth Originating Site Fee
ACTT

Psych Diag Eval

Emergency Room - BH

Highest Volume Behavioral Health Services by Distinct Members Served

I ————————— — — ————————— 283
I 126

I 124

[

——— 56

——— 52

I—— 48

I 35

I 31

I 31

11



Vaya Health

Daymark Recovery Services Inc
Stepping Stone Of North Carolina
Watauga Opportunities Inc

Rha Health Services Nc Llc

Watauga Medical Center Inc

Center For Emotional Health Pc
Southmountain Children And Family S
Youth Villages Inc

Charles A Cannon Jr Memorial Hospit

Watauga BH services

Highest Volume Behavioral Health Services by Distinct Members Served

I 107
I 33

I 25

I 13

I 18

I 16

I 14

I 14

197

218

12



YAYA THANK

VAYAHEALTH Yo U




AGENDA ITEM 8:

BOARD OF ELECTIONS EQUIPMENT PURCHASE REQUEST
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Matt Snyder, Board of Elections Director, will request the Board approve the purchase of 31
DS300 and 28 Express Votes from ES&S/Printelect for $313,535.25; 19 VC EZ Carts from
Printelect and 2 VC EZ Carts from Caldwell County Board of Elections for $38,825; and 12
Balotars from ES&S/Printelect for $71,570. As shipping is not included, staff’s understanding is
Mr. Snyder will provide the total cost for shipping at a later date. If the amount for shipping
exceeds $15,000, Mr. Snyder will bring back to the Board for approval. Unless, the Board wishes
to authorize the County Manager to pay the shipping costs not to exceed $50,000.

Board action is required to approve the $423,930.25 for:

1. 31 DS300 and 28 Express Votes from ES&S/Printelect for $313,535.25

2. 19 VC EZ Carts from Printelect and 2 VC EZ Carts from Caldwell County Board of
Elections for $38,825

3. 12 Balotars from ES&S/Printelect for $71,570

4. Authorize the County Manager to pay the shipping cost once determined not to exceed
$50,000



In the 2000 Presidential election, the race came down to hanging chads in Florida. As a result, in 2002 the Help America
Vote Act (HAVA) was passed and grants were awarded to States to buy modern election equipment. Using Federal funds
from the HAVA grant, Watauga County acquired our current voting equipment in 2006. It has lasted well past its 10-year
life expectancy because of routine maintenance and good care.

There are 21 election day precincts, 6 Early Voting sites, and Absentee by Mail, all of which must have a separate
tabulator. Each election day precinct and Early Voting site must also have an ADA ballot marking device. We currently
have 31 M100 tabulators, 28 Automark ADA ballot marking devices, and 1 M650 high speed tabulator. This allows for
some backup devices should any problems arise.

In order to purchase new equipment, the North Carolina State Board of Elections has developed a process each county
must go through. This process is defined in Numbered Memo 2021-01(included in packet). The Board of Elections began
this process in February by witnessing demonstrations and going to exhaustive lengths to thoroughly explore every
avenue of voting equipment options.

The Board members voted at their May 13, 2025 meeting to acquire the DS300 voting system from ES&S, our current
vendor. The DS300 system is the most modern election technology available to us and is VVSG 2.0 compliant. Should the
recent Presidential Executive Order regarding election equipment be upheld, we would already be in compliance. One of
the many technological advancements of the DS300 is its ability to carry out many post-election audits including through
the use of Cast Vote Records (CVR’s).

The Board also approved a resolution to purchase a storage and transport solution for the voting equipment and voting
site supplies. The EZ Cart transport solution will help protect the voting equipment and extend its lifetime. It will also
minimize the risk of an injury to our Election Judges, many of whom are over 70, from having to carry and load heavy
election equipment and supplies. In addition, it helps ensure that the correct gear is delivered to the correct voting site,
and will make set-up and break-down of voting sites much more efficient.

Finally, the Board approved a ballot on demand system to ensure the issuance of the correct ballot style to voters at
Early Voting sites and election day precincts with multiple ballot styles. This system is integrated with the State Board of
Elections database and other systems and prints the specific ballot style for the voter according to the voter’s record in
the database. This eliminates the possibility of issuing an incorrect ballot style.

Currently used Proposed replacement
Tabulator M100 DS300
ADA ballot-marking device Automark Express Vote

Necessary but not required equipment
EZ Cart

Ballot-on-Demand



Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 27255
Raleigh, NC 27611

NORTH CAROLINA gmme

STATE BOARD OF ELECTIONS Fax 91917150135

Numbered Memo 2021-01

TO: County Boards of Elections

FROM: Karen Brinson Bell, Executive Director

RE: Procedures for Purchasing Voting Equipment

DATE: March 1, 2021 (Revised April 14, 2023; July 20, 2023)

This Numbered Memo updates Numbered Memo 2019-04 and details the procedures a county
board of elections is required to follow when seeking to purchase certified voting systems and
components.

When seeking to use a new voting system in the county, a county board of elections must follow
the same procedures regardless of when the voting system was certified.

Only voting systems certified by the State Board may be used in North Carolina. North Carolina
law and the Elections Systems Certification Program adopted by the State Board establish the
role of the county board of elections in selecting a new voting system for that county and impose
procedures during and after the adoption and acquisition of a certified voting system for use in
the county.

For detailed information on the certification process and the role of the State Board and vendors,
please see the Elections Systems Certification Program.

Voting Systems Certified by the State Board

The following voting systems are certified for use in North Carolina:

e ES&SEVS6.3.00
o DS200 precinct tabulator
DS300 precinct tabulator
DS850 central tabulator
DS450 central tabulator
DS950 central tabulator
o ExpressVote ballot marking device
e ES&SEVS5.240
o DS200 precinct tabulator
o DS450 central tabulator
o DS850 central tabulator
o ExpressVote ballot marking device

©)
©)
©)
©)


https://s3.amazonaws.com/dl.ncsbe.gov/sboe/numbermemo/2019/Numbered%20Memo%202019-04_Voting%20Systems%20Certification.pdf
https://s3.amazonaws.com/dl.ncsbe.gov/Voting_Systems_Docs/NCSBEVotingSystemsCertificationProgram_03282023.pdf

o AutoMARK ballot marking device
e Hart InterCivic Verity Voting 2.2/2.5

o Verity Scan precinct tabulator

o Verity Touch Writer ballot marking device

o Verity Central Workstation central tabulator

o Verity Print ballot on demand
e ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1

o MZ100 precinct tabulator

o DS200 precinct tabulator

o M®650 central tabulator

o DS850 central tabulator

o AutoMARK ballot marking device
e ES&S Unity 3.0.1.1

o MZ100 precinct tabulator

o M®650 central tabulator

o AutoMARK ballot marking device
e Clear Ballot ClearVote 1.4}

o ClearCast precinct tabulator

o ClearAccess ballot marking device

o ClearCount central tabulator

o ClearAudit election audit system

Requirements for Adopting and Acquiring a Certified Voting System
Ultimately, the county board of commissioners (with the recommendation and approval of the
county board of elections) must adopt and acquire a voting system that is certified by the State
Board for use in the county. Before the board of county commissioners approves the adoption
and acquisition of a voting system, the county board of elections must do the following:?

Step 1: Witness a demonstration of the recommended voting system plus at least one
other certified voting system not currently used in your county. The demonstration can
take place in the county or at a site designated by the State Board.

e The demonstration should be organized as part of a public meeting with invitations sent
to the county board of commissioners, the county manager, the county attorney, and the
political parties in the county.

e The county board should give public notice of the demonstration and meeting, as it does
for all other board meetings.

! Clear Ballot is not currently used in any county in North Carolina.
2 See G.S. 8 163-165.9 and Section 3.3.2 of the Certification Program.

2



e A majority of county board members must meet the demonstration requirement. All
board members of the county board of elections should witness a demonstration if
possible.

Step 2: Make a preliminary recommendation to the board of county commissioners as to
which voting system should be acquired by the county.
e Official action to preliminarily recommend to the board of commissioners can be taken as
soon as the same meeting during which the demonstration is conducted, provided the
meeting is properly noticed. Alternatively, the meeting to preliminarily recommend a

voting system may be noticed prior to the demonstration as long as the meeting is held
after the demonstration.

e The Board can document its recommendation by resolution, letter, presentation, or other
official action.

Step 3: The county board must either: (1) test the proposed voting system in at least one
precinct where the voting system would be used if adopted, or (2) test the proposed
voting system in a simulated election.
Option 1: Testing in a Precinct in an Election
e County board staff must notify State Board voting systems staff of its intent to test the
recommended voting system.
e The voting systems election management system and the components of the system must
undergo Logic & Accuracy testing prior to use in the test election.
e After completing canvass, the county board must determine that the recommended voting
system has met the requirements for voting in that county.

Option 2: Testing in a Simulated Election

e County boards may test proposed voting equipment in a simulated election, in accordance
with standards established by the State Board.®

e Please refer to the Standards for Simulated Election policy, adopted by the State Board
on July 31, 2020 (revised March 28, 2023), for more information on how to test the
proposed equipment in a simulated election. The policy is attached to this memo.

e State Board staff must be notified of any plans to conduct a simulated election prior to
scheduling.

Step 4: Seek State Board approval to replace the current voting system.

e The county board of elections cannot replace any voting system, or any portion thereof,
without approval of the State Board.*

3G.S. § 163-165.9(a)(3)(h).
4 See G.S. § 163-165.9(b)(3).



The form to request approval is attached to this memo.

Step 5: Make a final recommendation to the board of county commissioners.

The board of commissioners can decline to adopt or acquire any voting system
recommended by the county board of elections, but it cannot adopt and acquire a voting
system that has not been approved by the county board of elections.®

The public contracting and procurement statutes do not apply to the purchase of a
certified voting system.

Along with the final recommendation, the CBE must submit the proposed vendor
contract to the State Board of Elections for review and approval.

Requirements After the County Has Adopted and Acquired a Certified

Voting System

The county board of elections must conduct acceptance testing when a newly procured voting
system (or any newly acquired type of equipment for a voting system) is delivered. Acceptance
testing ensures that the system delivered is identical to that which was certified and that it
operates in good working condition. This testing is conducted by the county board with the
assistance of State Board staff or consultants approved by the State Board.

Additionally, the county board of elections must also comply with any requirements of the State
Board regarding training and support of the voting system by completing all of the following:®

The CBE must comply with all of the vendor’s specifications for ballot printers. The
CBE can contract with noncertified ballot printer vendors as long as that vendor meets all
of the specifications and the State Board’s quality assurance requirements.

The CBE must maintain annual software license agreements.

The CBE must uphold annual maintenance agreements necessary to maintain the
warranty of the voting system or employ qualified personnel to maintain a voting system
in lieu of entering into maintenance agreements.

Before entering into any maintenance agreement, the CBE shall ensure the vendor agrees
to operate a training program for qualified personnel hired by the CBE.

The CBE must notify the State Board at the time of every repair, according to State
Board guidelines.

The CBE must continue to comply with the Voting Systems Vendor Code of Ethics.

5 See G.S. § 163-165.8.
6 See G.S. § 163-165.9A(a).


https://s3.amazonaws.com/dl.ncsbe.gov/sboe/Vendor%20Code%20of%20Ethics%20(6%20pages).pdf

Frequently Asked Questions

Q: The county board wants to purchase an additional piece of equipment that is part of the
voting system the board currently uses. Is the board required to witness a demonstration and is
the county board of commissioners required to adopt and acquire the new equipment? Do we
need to conduct a simulated election after purchasing the new equipment?

A: The county board does not need to witness a demonstration or seek approval of the county
commissioners to adopt and acquire a new component of the county’s currently used voting
system. Nor does the county need to conduct a simulated election. The county is not adopting a
new voting system but rather is purchasing an additional piece of equipment within its currently
existing system. With any new purchase of a voting system or any component thereof, the county
board needs to conduct acceptance testing to be coordinated with the State Board.

Q: The county board wants to upgrade from ES&S EVS 5.2.4.0 to ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0. Is this
considered “adopting and acquiring” a new voting system under the statute?

A: Yes. These are two different voting systems, each of which was required to go through full
certification review by the State Board. A county board is “adopting and acquiring” a new voting
system if it is upgrading to EVS 6.3.0.0 from any other certified voting system, and the county
board needs to complete all required steps for adopting and acquiring a new voting system. On
the other hand, a county board is not considered to have adopted and acquired a new voting
system if it is upgrading to the most recent certified version of the system, where that more
recent certified version was not required to go through full certification review by the State
Board (e.g., moving from ES&S Unity 3.0.1.1 to Unity 3.4.1.1, or from Hart InterCivic Verity
2.2 to Verity 2.5). The State Board determines whether a new version of a voting system is a
mere modification of an existing certified system or a new voting system entirely, the latter of
which requires full certification review and all preapproval procedures by the county before
acquiring a new system.

Q: The county board wants to purchase equipment from a newly certified voting system but
much of its existing equipment will continue to work and be used. Is this considered adopting a
new voting system?
A: Changing from one certified voting system to another certified system is considered adopting
and acquiring a new voting system, even though some equipment remains the same, and your
county board needs to complete all required steps for adopting and acquiring a new voting
system. A “voting system” is the total combination of mechanical, electromechanical, or
electronic equipment (including the software, firmware, hardware, and documentation required
to program, control, and support the equipment) that is used to define ballots; to cast or tabulate
votes; to read election media; to report or display election results; and to maintain and produce
5




any audit trail information.” Although some hardware, can be configured to work with more than
one system, if the county is adopting equipment from a new voting system that underwent
separate State certification, it is acquiring a new voting system.

Q: The county board wants to adopt a new voting system, and three members of the current
board witnessed demonstrations of that new system and another currently certified voting
system in the past. Is the board required to witness demonstrations again?

A: A majority of county board members voting on the recommendation must have witnessed a
demonstration, so if a majority of the board has already witnessed a demonstration of the
recommended voting system and at least one other certified voting system not currently used in
the county, the board is not required to repeat the demonstration. However, all board members of
the county board of elections should witness a demonstration if possible. Board members are not
required to attend demonstrations on the same day.

Q: Can my county board conduct a simulated election prior to witnessing demonstrations?

A: No. The simulated election must take place after witnessing the demonstration of the
proposed voting system and one other certified system not currently in use in the county and
after making a preliminary recommendation to the county commissioners as to which system the
county should adopt and acquire.

Q: Can the demonstration required in Step 1 be conducted virtually?

A: Yes. If a quorum of board members is present, the demonstration must be publicly noticed as
a meeting of the board and the county board of commissioners, county manager, county attorney,
and the political parties in the county must be notified of the demonstration. Ideally, a virtual
demonstration would be provided live. However, if a vendor is offered the opportunity to present
in person and live by virtual means, and the vendor declines, the county board may witness a
prerecorded demonstration of that vendor’s system.

Q: Can the county board’s test of a proposed new voting system occur in all precincts or voting
sites?

A: No. Using a proposed new voting system in all voting sites or all precincts circumvents the
purpose of testing the voting system before it is acquired and ultimately authorized by a county
and the State Board to be used as the county’s voting system.

" Elections Systems Certification Program at page 3-4 (emphasis added).
6



https://s3.amazonaws.com/dl.ncsbe.gov/Voting_Systems_Docs/NCSBEVotingSystemsCertificationProgram_03282023.pdf

Accessibility Requirement

The Help America Vote Act mandates that a voting system provide the same opportunity for
access and participation to voters with disabilities as it does to voters without disabilities.
Federal law requires that each voting place have an accessible voting option for voters with
disabilities to vote independently. A county board may choose to use any of the certified ballot
marking devices to meet this requirement, but due to limitations in tabulation software, a county
may not acquire voting systems from more than one vendor.

In selecting the voting system that will be used, county boards should be mindful of the
requirement that they must make available at each voting place “an adequate quantity of official
ballots or equipment.” Similarly, county commissioners shall provide “for each of those voting
places sufficient equipment of the approved voting system.”® County boards should consider the
expected turnout in their county and each voting place, including One-Stop early voting, central
transfer location, and Election Day, future elections, and the need to reduce long lines whenever
possible.

8G.S. § 163-165.10.



Request for Replacement of County Voting System

The

seeks the approval of the State Board of Elections to replace its voting system, or a portion thereof. Before approving
the adoption and acquisition of any voting system by the board of county commissioners, the county board of elections

County Board of Elections (“Board”), having met on

carried out the following steps, which are documented on this form.

STEP 1: DEMONSTRATION

The county board must witness a demonstration of the recommended voting system plus at least one other certified
voting system not currently used in the county. The demonstration can take place in the county, at a site designated by

the State Board, or by virtual means.

e The demonstration should be organized as part of a public meeting with invitations sent to the county board of

commissioners, the county manager, the county attorney, and the political parties in the county.

e The county board should give public notice of the demonstration and meeting, as it does for all other board

meetings.

e A majority of county board members voting on the recommendation must have witnessed a demonstration. All

five members of the county board of elections should attend a demonstration if possible.

County Board member 1:

Voting Systems Reviewed:

|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.2
[ ] Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5

Demo
Location:

Date:

[ ] ES&S EVS5.2.4.0
[ ] ES&SEVS6.3.0.0

[ ] ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1

County Board member 2:

Voting Systems Reviewed:

[ ] Hart InterCivic Verity 2.2
|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5

Demo
Location:

Date:

[ ] ES&SEVS5.2.4.0
[ ] ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0

[ ] ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1

County Board member 3:

Voting Systems Reviewed:

|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.2
|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5

Demo
Location:

Date:

[ ] ES&S EVS5.2.4.0
[ ] ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0

[ ] ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1

County Board member 4:

Voting Systems Reviewed:

[ ] Hart InterCivic Verity 2.2
|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5

Demo
Location:

Date:

[ ] ES&SEVS5.2.4.0
[ ] ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0

[ ] ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1

County Board member 5:

Voting Systems Reviewed:

|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.2
|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5

Demo
Location:

Date:

[ ] ES&SEVS5.2.4.0
[ ] ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0

[ ] ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1

NCSBE 2023.07

hereby




STEP 2: PRELIMINARY RECOMMENDATION
The county board must make a preliminary recommendation to the board of county commissioners as to which voting
system should be acquired by the county.

Official action to preliminarily recommend can be taken as soon as the same meeting during which the
demonstration is conducted, provided the meeting is properly noticed. Alternatively, the meeting to
preliminarily recommend a voting system may be noticed prior to the demonstration as long as the meeting is
held after the demonstration.

The Board can recommend by resolution, letter, presentation, or other official action.

Following the voting system demonstration, the Board recommended:

[] by resolution dated

[ ] by letter dated signed by

|:| by presentation given on

[ ] by nature of an official action taken on

that

County adopt and acquire the:

|:| ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0 Voting System

[ ] ES&S EVS 5.2.4.0 Voting System

[ ] ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1 Voting System

|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5 Voting System

STEP 3: TEST THE PROPOSED VOTING SYSTEM
The county board must either: (1) test the proposed voting system in at least one precinct where the voting system
would be used if adopted, or (2) test the proposed voting system in a simulated election.

County board staff must notify State Board voting systems staff via email (votingsystems.sboe@ncsbe.gov) of

its intent to test the recommended voting system.

The voting systems election management system and the components of the system must undergo Logic &
Accuracy testing prior to use in the test election.

After completing the test election, the county board must determine that the recommended voting system has
met the requirements for voting in that county.

Simulated elections must be conducted in accordance with the Standards for Simulated Election policy.

On , the county board staff notified the State Board of Elections voting systems
staff of its intent to test the recommended voting system.

The recommended voting system was tested on . The voting systems
election management system and all of the components of the system were subject to Logic & Accuracy
testing prior to use in the test election.

If tested during a real election, the recommended voting system was tested in one-stop absentee

voting site(s) and/or Election Day precinct(s).

The Board, having completed its election (real or simulated) in which the recommended voting system
was tested, has determined that the recommended system meets the requirements for voting in the
county.

NCSBE 2023.07


mailto:votingsystems.sboe@ncsbe.gov
https://s3.amazonaws.com/dl.ncsbe.gov/Voting_Systems_Docs/Standards%20for%20Simulated%20Election.pdf

STEP 4: SBE APPROVAL
The county board must obtain the approval of the State Board before replacing any voting system, or any portion
thereof.

The County Board seeks the approval of the State Board of Elections to replace its current voting system, or a
portion thereof, with the following voting system:

|:| Hart InterCivic Verity 2.5 Voting System |:| ES&S Unity 3.4.1.1 Voting System

[ ] ES&S EVS 6.3.0.0 Voting System [ ] ES&S EVS 5.2.4.0 Voting System

The Board proposes to adopt and acquire the voting system’s election management system (EMS) and the following
components of the system:

Component Type Model Quantity

Precinct Ballot Tabulator (PBT)

Central Ballot Tabulator (CBT)

Ballot Marking Device (BMD)

BMD Printer

Ballot on Demand (BOD) Printers

The Board proposes to use the ballot marking device and its accessible peripherals to
meet ADA requirements to allow for accessible voting.

NCSBE 2023.07



Along with this request, the County Board is submitting the proposed vendor contract to permit the State Board of
Elections to review and approve the terms of the vendor’s contract.

THE COMPLETION OF THE FORGOING STEPS IS ATTESTED TO AND THE REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF VOTING
SYSTEM REPLACEMENT IS HEREBY MADE BY:

Board Chair: Date:
Board Secretary: Date:
Board Member: Date:
Board Member: Date:
Board Member: Date:

State Board of Elections use only
The proposed voting system replacement [I1S [ IS NOT approved.

Approved by: Date:

STEP 5: ADOPTION AND ACQUISITION OF NEW VOTING SYSTEM BY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS
Following SBE approval, the County Board understands that it may then proceed to ask its Board of County

Commissioners for the approval and funding to acquire the recommended voting system. The board of county
commissioners, with the approval of the county board of elections, may adopt and acquire only a voting system of a
type, make, and model certified by the State Board for use in some or all voting places in the county at some or all
elections. The board of county commissioners may decline to adopt and acquire any voting system recommended by
the county board of elections but may not adopt and acquire any voting system that has not been approved by the
county board of elections.

NCSBE 2023.07






shall vote simulated election ballots according to standard ballot marking instruc-
tions for the purpose of ensuring that the system is operating properly and has
been programmed to count votes accurately.

After all simulated voting sites have been opened, voted, and closed, the county
board will import results into the election management software, print reports,
and compare results against the tabulator results tapes.

The State Board of Elections will provide the county board of elections at least
two sites chosen at random for a hand-eye sample audit. With each chosen site,
the highest contest on the simulated election ballot and one other contest selected
at random will be audited.

County board of elections members and staff may conduct the simulated elec-
tion. If possible, the county board of elections shall include precinct officials in
the simulated election event. The public shall be invited and may observe the
simulated election event.

All records, ballots, and related documents for the simulated election shall be re-
tained for 5 years after the testing event and in accordance with the Records Re-
tention and Disposition Schedule for County Boards of Elections as issued by the
North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources, specifically item 23, “Voting
Machine Lists, Testing Records and Certifications.”

If the county board of elections seeks approval from the State Board to replace
the current voting system with the system tested in the simulated election, the
following documentation shall be provided with the request as evidence of the
simulated election:

a. Summary election results report(s);

b. By precinct election results report(s); and

c. Copies, or a link to digital copies, of tabulator results tapes.












AGENDA ITEM 9:

TAX MATTERS

A. Monthly Collections Reports
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Tyler Rash, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Reports from March and
April 2025 and be available for questions and discussion.

The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required.



Monthly Collections Report

Watauga County

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The reported
totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer

Monthly Report March 2025
Current Month Current FY Current FY Previous FY
Collections Collections Percentage Percentage
General County
Taxes 2024 576,209.84 43,352,195.21 97.56% 97.79%
Prior Year Taxes 60,847.26 450,892.07
Solid Waste User Fees 50,653.31 3,330,841.89 96.45% 96.35%
Total County Funds $687,710.41 $47,133,929.17
Fire Districts
Foscoe Fire 8.659.88 688,086.31 98.10% 98.17%
Boone Fire 19,741.91 1,323,650.97 97.49% 97.51%
Fall Creek Service Dist. 298.14 13,672.14 96.01% 95.27%
Beaver Dam Fire 1,961.23 137,149.03 95.23% 94.67%
Stewart Simmons Fire 9,576.77 444,515.40 98.80% 98.05%
Zionville Fire 4,002.23 154,279.81 95.56% 95.85%
Cove Creek Fire 6,596.00 350,845.66 96.89% 96.52%
Shawneehaw Fire 2,507.99 163,353.70 97.63% 97.25%
Meat Camp Fire 6,113.42 314,411.45 95.36% 95.16%
Deep Gap Fire 3,070.87 272,760.38 95.18% 97.11%
Todd Fire 507.29 76,299.17 97.11% 95.86%
Blowing Rock Fire 8,342.90 707,420.86 97.48% 98.44%
M.C. Creston Fire 67.77 7,030.66 90.73% 92.19%
Foscoe Service District 2,510.61 108,615.58 97.81% 98.50%
Beech Mtn. Service Dist. 14.96 2,769.61 99.39% 99.39%
Cove Creek Service Dist. 0.00 65.65 19.50% 100.00%
Shawneehaw Service Dist 149.03 8,218.55 95.67% 96.12%
Total Fire Districts 74,121.00 4,773,144.93
Towns
Boone 82,026.18 9,188,588.55 98.76% 98.80%
Municipal Services 1,780.13 284,399.81 98.75% 97.84%
Total Town Taxes $83,806.31 $9,472,988.36
Total Amount Collected $845,637.72 ) $61,380,062.46

jbfﬂ/"/ &Q/‘J Tax Collections Director
// Tax Administrator

/




Monthly Collections Report

Watauga County

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The reported
totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer

Monthly Report April 2025
Current Month Current FY Current FY Previous FY
Collections Collections Percentage Percentage
General County
Taxes 2024 256,897.27 43,609,092 .48 98.11% 98.41%
Prior Year Taxes 68,143.98 519.036.05
Solid Waste User Fees 19,741.40 3,350,583.29 97.00% 97.03%
Total County Funds $344,782.65 $47,478,711.82
Fire Districts
Foscoe Fire 2.,894.29 690,980.60 98.50% 98.70%
Boone Fire 9,508.62 1,333,159.59 98.16% 98.08%
Fall Creek Service Dist. 84.09 13,756.23 96.58% 095.42%
Beaver Dam Fire 967.09 138,116.12 95.88% 95.50%
Stewart Simmons Fire 954.68 445,470.08 99.00% 99.10%
Zionville Fire 1,426.06 155,705.87 896.41% 96.69%
Cove Creek Fire . 2.365.03 353,210.69 97.51% 97.09%
Shawnechaw Fire 1,267.08 164,620.78 98.36% 97.36%
Meat Camp Fire 2,255.42 316,666.87 96.01% 85.71%
Deep Gap Fire 1,221.69 273,982.07 95.59% 97.60%
Todd Fire 915.67 77,214.84 98.23% 97.31%
Blowing Rock Fire 4,622.44 712,043.30 98.09% 98.92%
M.C. Creston Fire 42 45 7,073.11 91.24% 92.48%
Foscoe Service District 672.05 109,287.63 98.39% 98.84%
Beech Min. Service Dist. 1.30 2,770.91 99.44% 99.52%
Cove Creek Service Dist. 280.49 346.14 99.40% 100.00%
Shawnechaw Service Dist 47.56 8,266.11 96.18% 97.86%
Total Fite Districts 29,526,01 4.802,670.94
Towns
Boone 18,506.71 9,207,095.26 98.95% 99.26%
Mumicipal Services 1,146.03 285,545.84 99.13% 98.41%
Total Town Taxes $19,652.74 $9,492,641.10
Total Amount Collected $393,961.40 $61,774,023.86

\é@ M Tax Collections Director
L™

/ / Tax Administrator



AGENDA ITEM 9:

TAX MATTERS

B. Refunds and Releases

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Mr. Rash will present the Refunds and Releases Reports. Board action is required to accept the
Refunds and Releases Reports.



WATAUGA COUNTY

RELEASES - 03/01/2025 TO 03/31/2025

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS

1860753

1606067

1606067

1640333

1640333

1640333

1822519

ASAP, INC.
PO BOX 24770

NASHVILLE, TN 37202

BOONE INDUSTRIES INC
PO BOX 424

BOONE, NC 28607

(=3
©o
w
u
(e
N

BOONE INDUSTRIES INC
PO BOX 424

BOONE, NC 28607

©o
W
(%
e
N

COLE INDUSTRIES WATAUGA INC
DBA/BOONE INDUSTRIES

PO BOX 424

BOONE, NC 28607

COLE INDUSTRIES WATAUGA INC
DBA/BOONE INDUSTRIES

PO BOX 424

BOONE, NC 28607

COLE INDUSTRIES WATAUGA INC
DBA/BOONE INDUSTRIES

PO BOX 424

BOONE, NC 28607

GENTRY & LAUREN TAYLOR

9420 GINHOUSE LANE

CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

Report generated: 04/14/2025 14:25

User:
Program ID:

Tyler.Rash
tncrarpt

CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE
PROPERTY JUR
REASON

PP 2024 1539 03/10/2025
4560 co

REFUND RELEASE
CLOSED

PP 2022 3297 03/19/2025
606067999 F

REFUND RELEASE
CLOSED

PP 2023 3065 03/19/2025
606067999 FO

REFUND RELEASE
CLOSED

PP 2022 3582 03/19/2025
640333999 FO
REFUND RELEASE

closed

PP 2023 3329 03/19/2025
640333999 FO
REFUND RELEASE

CLOSED

PP 2024 3285 03/19/2025
640333999 FO
REFUND RELEASE

CLOSED

PP 2024 1164 03/03/2025
3785 FO1

REFUND RELEASE
DOUBLE BILLED

REF NO

12120

12124

12125

12127

12126

12128

12118

VALUE
CHARGE AMOUNT
0 c02 .62
GO1 .51
1.13
0 GO0l 28.24
FO9 4.44
GO1L 2.82
FO9L 44
0 GO0l 28.24
FO9 4.44
GO1L 2.82
FO9L 44
0 GO0l 77.15
FO9 12.13
89.28
0 GO0l 82.62
FO9 12.99
GO1L 8.26
FOOL 1.30
105.17
0 GO0l 82.62
FO9 12.99
GO1L 8.26
FO9L 1.30
105.17
0 FO1 6.18
GO1 39.27
FO1L .62
GO1L 3.93
50.00

%% Munis

L4 . atyler erp solution

Page

1



| g = munis
WATAUGA COUNTY 3 : R i

RELEASES - 03/01/2025 TO 03/31/2025

CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR
OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
1589338 GREER, MILDRED (LIFE ESTATE) RE 2024 19955 0 FO06 .00
HICKS, TOMMY 1984-91-0792-000 FO6 GO1 .00
C/0 LINDA HICKS TAX ADJUSTMENTS 2019955 SWF .00
929 RAINBOW TRL From CAMA Integration e
BOONE, NC 28607 .00
1858418 HEDRICK, JEFFREY M. RE 2024 14739 03/07/2025 29,700 FO8 14.85
PO BOX 465 1960-97-0417-000 FO8 GO1 94.44
TAX ADJUSTMENTS 12119 SWF 102.87
BOONE, NC 28607 HOUSE REMOVED FROM PROPERTY IN 2023 —mmmmmmmmm o
212.16
1506862 HICKS, LINDA G RE 2024 40500 0 F02 .00
929 RAINBOW TRL 2911-25-0853-000 FO2 GO1 .00
TAX ADJUSTMENTS 2040500 SWF .00
BOONE, NC 28607 From CAMA Integration mmmmmememo o (—)(—)
1101120 MAINS, SEBRINA PP 2024 2149 03/17/2025 0 G01 4.77
MAINS, C/0 ALYSON BLAIR 389277900 FO6 FO6 .75
3823 SEDGEFIELD DRIVE TAX RELEASES 12121 GO1L .48
sold property 2023 FO6L .08
CONOVER, NC 28613 e
6.08
1737330 PETTIGREW, GEORGE PP 2024 215 03/24/2025 0 FO7 5.82
PETTIGREW, LINDA 937 FO7 G01 37.02
3032 AUDREY DRIVE TAX RELEASES 12129 SWF 102.87
CAMPER TAGGED IN GASTON COUNTY 10/23 oo
GASTONIA, NC 28054 145.71
1794548 RUIZ, LETICIA PP 2023 946 03/18/2025 5,000 FO06 2.50
160 CRANBERRY CREEK 3048 FO6 GO1 15.90
TAX RELEASES 12123 SWF 102.87
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698 MH BILLED UNDER AND PAID UNDER ACCT FO6L .25
1811160 GO1L 1.59
123.11]
1794548 RUIZ, LETICIA PP 2024 894 03/18/2025 4,850 FO06 2.42
160 CRANBERRY CREEK 3048 FO6 GOl 15.43
TAX RELEASES 12122 SWF 102.87
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698 MH BILLED UNDER AND PAID UNDER 1811160 FO6L .25
GO1L 1.55
122.52
DETAIL SUMMARY COUNT: 14 RELEASES - TOTAL 39,550 1,032.21
Report generated: 04/14/2025 14:25 Page 2

User: Tyler.Rash
Program ID: tncrarpt



WATAUGA COUNTY o . munis

a tyler erp solution

RELEASES - 03/01/2025 TO 03/31/2025

RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT
2022 PP FO9 MEAT CAMP FIRE PP 16.57
2022 pp  FO9L MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST .44
2022 PP GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 105.39
2022 PP GO1L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 2.82
2022 TOTAL 125.22

2023 PP FO6 ZIONVILLE FIRE PP 2.50
2023 PP FO6L ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST .25
2023 PP FO9 MEAT CAMP FIRE PP 17.43
2023 pp  FO9L MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST 1.74
2023 PP GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 126.76
2023 PP GO1L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 12.67
2023 PP SWF SANITATION USER FEE 102.87
2023 TOTAL 264.22

2024 RE F02 BOONE FIRE RE .00
2024 RE FO06 ZIONVILLE FIRE RE .00
2024 RE FO8 SHAWNEEHAW FIRE RE 14.85
2024 RE GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY RE 94.44
2024 RE SWF SANITATION USER FEE 102.87
2024 PP 02 BOONE PP .62
2024 pp FO1 FOSCOE FIRE PP 6.18
2024 pp  FOLL FOSCOE FIRE LATE LIST .62
2024 PP FO6 ZIONVILLE FIRE PP 3.17
2024 pp  FO6L ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST .33
2024 pP FO7 COVE CREEK FIRE PP 5.82
2024 pp  FO9 MEAT CAMP FIRE PP 12.99
2024 pp  FO9L MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST 1.30
2024 pp GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 179.62
2024 pp GO1L WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 14.22
2024 PP SWF SANITATION USER FEE 205.74
2024 TOTAL 642.77

SUMMARY TOTAL 1,032.21

Report generated: 04/14/2025 14:25 Page 3

User: Tyler.Rash
Program ID: tncrarpt



WATAUGA COUNTY

RELEASES - 03/01/2025 TO 03/31/2025

RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

JUR YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT
c02 2024 02 BOONE PP .62
c02 2024 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP .51

C02 TOTAL 1.13
FO1 2024 FO1 FOSCOE FIRE PP 6.18
FO1 2024 FO1L  FOSCOE FIRE LATE LIST .62
FO1 2024 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 39.27
FO1 2024 GO1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 3.93

FO1 TOTAL 50.00
F02 2024 F02 BOONE FIRE RE .00
FO2 2024 GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY RE .00
FO2 2024 SwFr SANITATION USER FEE .00

FO2 TOTAL .00
FO6 2023 F06 ZIONVILLE FIRE PP 2.50
FO6 2023 FO6L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST .25
FO6 2023 GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 15.90
FO6 2023 GO1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 1.59
FO6 2023 SwF SANITATION USER FEE 102.87
FO6 2024 F06 ZIONVILLE FIRE RE 3.17
FO6 2024 FO6L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST .33
FO6 2024 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY RE 20.20
FO6 2024 GO1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 2.03
FO6 2024 SwF SANITATION USER FEE 102.87

FO6 TOTAL 251.71
FO7 2024 FO7 COVE CREEK FIRE PP 5.82
FO7 2024 GO1 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 37.02
FO7 2024 SwFr SANITATION USER FEE 102.87

FO7 TOTAL 145.71
FO8 2024 FO8 SHAWNEEHAW FIRE RE 14.85
FO8 2024 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY RE 94.44
FO8 2024 SwFr SANITATION USER FEE 102.87

FO8 TOTAL 212.16
FO9 2022 F09 MEAT CAMP FIRE PP 16.57
FO9 2022 FO9L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST .44
FO09 2022 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 105.39
FO9 2022 GO1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 2.82
FO9 2023 F09 MEAT CAMP FIRE PP 17.43
FO9 2023 FO9L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST 1.74
FO9 2023 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 110.86
FO9 2023 GO1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 11.08
FO9 2024 F09 MEAT CAMP FIRE PP 12.99
FO9 2024 FO9L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST 1.30
FO9 2024 G01 WATAUGA COUNTY PP 82.62
FO9 2024 GO1L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST 8.26

Report generated: 04/14/2025 14:25 Page 4

User: Tyler.Rash
Program ID: tncrarpt



WATAUGA COUNTY %> MuUNIs

L4 a tyler erp solution

RELEASES - 03/01/2025 TO 03/31/2025

RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

JUR YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT
FO9 TOTAL 371.50
SUMMARY TOTAL 1,032.21

Report generated: 04/14/2025 14:25 Page 5
User: Tyler.Rash
Program ID: tncrarpt



AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

A. Proposed Amendment to Loan Agreement with the North Carolina Department of State
Treasurer

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

As part of the Cashflow Loan Agreement the Board passed at the previous meeting, approval of
the enclosed amendment is required. The amendment permits the County to receive expedited
public assistance from FEMA (the County received $3.3 million in expedited funding for Right-
of-Way debris removal) without triggering an obligation to repay the equivalent amount of loan
proceeds immediately. The Cashflow Loan amount was $895,477.60 and is interest free.

Board action is required to adopt the amendment as presented.



This Amendment has been pre-audited as required
by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act

Finance Officer

AMENDMENT
to
Loan Agreement between the State of North Carolina
(by and through the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer)
and the County of Watauga, North Carolina

This amendment (“Amendment”) to the above-identified agreement is hereby made and entered into by the
State of North Carolina, by and through the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer (“NCDST”), and the
County of Watauga, North Carolina (“Recipient”), as of the effective date established hereinbelow.

RECITALS

A. Effective May 20, 2025, NCDST and Recipient entered the above-identified agreement to establish terms and
conditions governing NCDST’s disbursement of loan proceeds to Recipient pursuant to the Hurricane Helene
Cash Flow Loan Program created by the North Carolina General Assembly under the Disaster Recovery Act of
2024 — Part 11 (the “Loan Agreement”).

B. Recipient has requested, and NCDST has agreed, to amend to the Loan Agreement to permit Recipient to
receive expedited or “up front” public assistance funding from FEMA (hereinafter referred to as “FEMA Public
Assistance Expedited Project Funding”) without triggering an obligation to repay the equivalent amount of loan
proceeds to NCDST immediately following Recipient’s receipt of such funding.

C. Pursuant to Section 10. of the Loan Agreement, the amendment requested by Recipient must be reduced to
writing and executed by both Parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the Parties do hereby agree
as follows:

1. Modifications to Loan Agreement.

(a) Subsection e. to section 3. of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the underlined text
appearing below:

c.

(i) Notwithstanding the Repayment Terms as stated on Page 1 of this Agreement, if RECIPIENT
receives funding support from the federal government as reimbursement for expenditures
covered under the FEMA Public Assistance Worksheets used as the basis for this Agreement,
then RECIPIENT shall repay NCDST the equivalent amount of loan proceeds within five (5)
business days of receipt of the federal funding support.

(i1) For the avoidance of doubt, the repayment obligation set forth in subdivision (i) above shall
not apply to any FEMA Public Assistance Expedited Project Funding received by RECIPIENT,
provided RECIPIENT supplies NCDST with documentation verifying that RECIPIENT has
been approved for such funding, including the amount thereof, as soon as reasonably




practicable following the effective date of this provision. Any portion of loan proceeds
provided to RECIPIENT for disaster response activities that are covered by FEMA Public
Assistance Expedited Project Funding shall be repaid in accordance with the Repayment Terms
set forth on Page 1 of this Agreement, unless earlier repaid by mutual agreement of the Parties,
or by operation of applicable law.

(b) Section 3., subsection g., subdivision (iii) of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended by inserting the
underlined text and deleting the stricken text appearing below:

(iii) If RECIPIENT obtains alternative funds pursuant to subdivision (ii) of this subsection g., then
RECIPIENT shall premptly remit such funds to NCDST in accordance with the provisions of
3.e. above. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, RECIPIENT shall not be required to repay
to NCDST any amount in excess over the amount of loan proceeds provided under this
Agreement.

Effect of Amendment.

(a) Except as expressly provided herein, all terms, conditions and provisions of the Loan Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and confirmed by RECIPIENT.

(b) This Amendment is not intended to modify any term, condition or provision contained in any of the loan
documents associated with RECIPIENT’s Loan Agreement (the “Associated Loan Documents”). All
terms, conditions and provisions of the Associated Loan Documents shall remain in full force and effect,
modified only to the extent necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Amendment.

(c) On and after the effective date hereof, unless the context clearly requires otherwise, any reference to the
Loan Agreement contained in the Associated Loan Documents or in the Loan Agreement itself shall be
interpreted as a reference to the Loan Agreement as amended by this Amendment.

Effective Date. The provisions of this Amendment shall become effective upon the date on which NCDST has
received the following:

(a) This Amendment, duly executed and delivered by Recipient and NCDST; and

(b) A certified copy of a resolution authorizing execution of this Amendment substantially in the form of
Exhibit A, duly executed and delivered by RECIPIENT.

Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original
but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. One or more counterparts of this Amendment
may be delivered by facsimile or in Portable Document Format (PDF) sent by electronic mail, with such
delivery having the same effect as delivery of an original counterpart. Signatures provided by facsimile
transmission, in PDF sent by electronic mail, or by electronic signature such as DocuSign, shall be deemed to
be original signatures.

[This space intentionally blank—signature page to follow.]

Page 2 of 4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties hereto has caused its duly authorized representative, as
applicable, to execute this Amendment Number One as of the dates written below.

North Carolina Department of State Treasurer County of Watauga, North Carolina
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Signature: Signature:
Date: Date:
EXHIBIT A

Page 3 of 4



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
(BY AND THROUGH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF STATE TREASURER) AND THE COUNTY OF
WATAUGA, NORTH CAROLINA

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County of Watauga, North Carolina previously approved and entered into a loan
agreement (“Loan Agreement”) and promissory note with the State of North Carolina, by and through the North
Carolina Department of State Treasurer (“NCDST”), in connection with the Hurricane Helene Cash Flow Loan
Program created by the North Carolina General Assembly under the Disaster Recovery Act of 2024 — Part II
(Session Law 2024-53, as amended by Session Law 2024-57); and

WHEREAS, County of Watauga, North Carolina has requested, and NCDST has agreed, to amend the
Loan Agreement to permit County of Watauga, North Carolina to receive FEMA Public Assistance Expedited
Project Funding without triggering an obligation to repay the equivalent amount of loan proceeds to NCDST

immediately following County of Watauga, North Carolina receipt of such funding (“Amendment to Loan
Agreement”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY County of Watauga, North Carolina]:

That the Amendment to Loan Agreement presented by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer is hereby
approved.

That the Watauga Board of County Commissioners’ Chairman is authorized to execute the attached Amendment to
Loan Agreement (or one substantially equivalent thereto) and to take such other actions as necessary to secure
disaster recovery loan funding from the State of North Carolina.

Adopted, this the day of ,

Watauga Board of County Commissioners’ Chairman

By:

Braxton Eggers
Chairman

ATTEST:

Anita Fogle
Clerk

Page 4 of 4



AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

B. Valle Crucis Elementary School Change Order
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:
Staff will request the Board approve a Change Order 6 for the Valle Crucis Elementary School in
the amount of $8,608.70. The Change Order is detailed in the enclosed information. The project

still has a negative Change Order balance.

Board approval is required to accept Change Order 6 in the amount of $8,608.70



May 13, 2025

Watauga County Manager
814 West King Street
Suite 205

Boone, NC 28607

Attn: Mr. Deron Geouque
County Manager

RE: VALLE CRUCIS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Dear Deron,

The following is a summary of Change Order 06 from H&M Constructors for Valle Crucis School. The H&M
provided backup was forwarded in multiple packages via email.

COR #34: $3,055.87 Revision 11; added fixtures miscellaneous electrical
COR #36: $18,057.22 Revision 12 electrical items

COR #87: (-$8330.00) Credit for redesign of boardwalk

COR #94: $2,280.94 Change NB fitting to anti vortex on sprinkler tank

COR #102: (-$3,808.31) Credit for 8 downspout boots

COR #103: $2,813.12 Additional 2 volleyball sleeves per VC request

COR #120: $429.59 Added sprinkler head to soffit outside kitchen in Corridor
COR #124: (-26,669.57) Removed fry reglet and replaced wood base with rubber
COR #132: $991.95 Switched SK-2 faucet per RFI 439 to pull out faucet
COR #134: $1712.51 Lab sink mixing valve

COR #136: $857.98 Added translucent film to window 240F at Restroom

We continue to appreciate the opportunity to work with Watauga County and look forward to the successful
completion of the project. ~ Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely,
CLARK NEXSEN

Eve Szentesi, AlA, LEED AP BD+C

St

301 College Street, Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801 CLARKNEXSEN

P:828.232.0608 | F: 828.232.1606 A Division of Johnson, Mirmiran, &Thompson, Inc.
clarknexsen.com



;-AIA Document G701° - 2017

Change Order
PROJECT: (Name and address) CONTRACT INFORMATION: CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION:
Valle Crucis Elementary School Contract For: General Construction Change Order Number: 006
Sugar Grove, NC

Date: 2/14/2023 Date: 5/5/2025
OWNER: (Name and address) ARCHITECT: (Name and addvress) CONTRACTOR: (Name and address)
Watauga County Clark Nexsen H&M Constructors, a Division of MB
814 W. King Street 301 College Street Haynes Corporation
Boone, NC 28607 Suite 300 187 Deaverview Road

Asheville, NC 28801 Asheville, NC 28806

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS:
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits. Also include agreed upon adjustments
attributable to executed Construction Change Directives.)

COR #34: $3,055.87
COR #36: $18,057.22
COR #87: -($8,330.00)
COR #94: $2,280.94
COR #102: -($3,808.31)
COR #103: $2,813.12
COR #120: $429.59
COR #124: -($26,669.57)
COR #132: $991.95
COR #134: §1,712.51
COR #136: $857.98

The original Contract Sum was $ 47,874,600.00
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders $ -246,111.29
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was $ 47,628,488.71
The Contract Sum will be decreased by this Change Order in the amount of $ 8.608.70

§ _ 47.619.88001

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be
The Contract Time will be unchanged by ( ) days.
The new date of Substantial Completion will be December 22, 2024

NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the Contract
Time, that have been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the
Owner and Contractor, in which case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive.

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER.

Clark Nexsen, Inc. H&M Constructors Wataupa County
ARCHITECT (Firm name) CONTRACTOR (Firm name) OWNER (Firm name)

AlA Document G701 — 2017. Copyright ® 1979, 1987, 2000 , 2001 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Instituts of Architects,* “American [nstitute of
Architects,” "AlA,” the AIA Logo, and "AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects, This document was produced at 14:44:13
ET on 05/06/2025 under Order No.3104240247 which expires on 06/30/2025, Is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com.

User Notes:

(3BBADA41)




it % 2yt

SIGNATURE [ SIGNATORE SIGNATURE

Eve Szentesi, AIA, LEED AP BD+C

Senior Architect DEN” N1O, ’

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE PRINTED NAME AND TITLE
I 543-25

DATE DATE DATE

AIA Document G701 - 2017. Copyright © 1979, 19887, 2000 , 2001 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,” *American Institute of
Architects,” “AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents® are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14:44:13 2
ET on 05/06/2025 under Order No.3104240247 which expires on 06/30/2025, s not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AlA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-malil docinfo@alacontracts.com.
User Notes:

(3BIADA41)




H&M

CONSTRUCTORS ~ “nee OrderPropesa
A Division of MB HAYNES Corporation
Project: Valle Crucis School COR #: | 34 |
Date: | 7.30.24 |

Description of Change: Revision 11; added fixtures misc electrical
H&M Material: Subtotals

1. Total Cost of Materials (Attach Backup) 0.00

2. Sales Tax 7.25% 0.00

3. Overhead & Profit 10% 0.00 0.00
H&M Labor:

4. Total Man Hour Cost (Attach Backup) 0.00

5. Labor Burden  (Enter Percentage) 41% 0.00

6. Overhead & Profit 15% 0.00 0.00
H&M Equipment Rental:

7. Equipment / Equipment Rental (Attach Backup) 0.00

8. Overhead & Profit 15% 0.00 0.00
H&M Unit Prices:

9. Unit Price (If Applicable) 0.00 0.00
H&M Subcontractors:

10. Subcontractor (Attach Subcontractor Backup) 2,723.59

11. Overhead & Profit (On Subcontractors) 10% 272.36 2,995.95

| Grand Subtotal = 2,995.95
13. P&P Bonds (On Grand Subtotal) 2% 59.92
| Total of Proposal = 3,055.87

Time Extension Request: 0 IDays

Schedule Activity # Affected

This Contractor agrees to perform the work outlined in this change proposal for the amount specified above

Eric Jones / VP

Owner/Architect

Date:

| Does this effect the critical path?

Date:




Subcontractor Name Change Order Proposal

Project: Valle Crucis School COR#:| REV11Drwgs |

Date:|  7/24/2023 |

Description of Change: Revision 11 Drwgs - Added Fixtures-Misc Electrical

Material: Subtotals

1. Total Cost of Materials (Attach Backup) $1,405.17

2. Sales Tax 6.75% $94.85

3. Overhead & Profit 10% $150.00 $1,650.02
Labor:

4. Total Man Hour Cost (Attach Backup) $686.98

5.labor Burden  (35% is Allowed) 35% $240.44

6. Overhead & Profit 10% $92.74 $1,020.17

Equipment Rental:

7. Equipment / Equipment Rental (Attach Backup) $0.00
8. Overhead & Profit 10% 50.00 $0.00
Unit Prices:
9. Unit Price (If Applicable) $0.00 $0.00
Subcontractors:
10. Subcontractor (Attach Subcontractor Backup) $0.00
11. Overhead & Profit (On Subcontractors) 10% $0.00 $0.00
L Grand Subtotal = $2,670.19
13. Bond If Required (On Grand Subtotal) 2% $53.40
| Total of Proposal =]  $2,723.59|

Time Extension Request: IDays
Schedule Activity # Affected 0 I Does this effect the critical path?

This Contractor agrees to perform the work outlined in this change proposal for the amount specified above

Subcontractor Lake Electric Co Inc Date: 7/24/2023




H&M COP (Details)

Subcontractor Name

Change Order Proposal (Details)

| | ] |
Project: Valle Crucis School COR #: REV 11 Drwgs
SCO#:0 |
l Date: 7/24/2023
t |
Description of Change: Revision 11 Drwgs - Added Fixtures-Misc Electrical
| | J | i I
MATERIALS LABOR
QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT | TOTAL |[MANHRS| DESCRIPTION | RATE ' LABOR COST
1 LOT ATTACHED $651.83 $651.83 | 13.87 |Electrician $33.25 $461.18
1 LOT FIXTURES $1,090.01  $1,090.01 | 13.87 |Apprentice $16.28 $225.80
-1 TYPEDG3 $336.67 ($336.67)| j $0.00
' $0.00 - $0.00
| $0.00 $0.00
- $0.00 | $0.00
$0.00 7 $0.00
| $0.00 $0.00
B $0.00 | $0.00
] $0.00 $0.00
- $0.00 | $0.00
- $0.00 $0.00
| $0.00 B $0.00
) $0.00 | $0.00
$0.00 | $0.00
o $0.00 ] $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
- $0.00 [ $0.00
o $0.00 - o $0.00
$0.00 | $0.00
MATERIAL SUBTOTAL:[ $1,405.17 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $686.98
EQUIPMENT RENTAL ~2nd TIER SUB COSTS (SEE ATTACHED)
- QTY DESCRIPTION RATE | TOTAL | ~ DESCRIPTION | COST
' $0.00 [ ' $0.00
e $0.00 ] $0.00
§ $0.00 ] $0.00
. $0.00 [ $0.00
$0.00 [ $0.00
] $0.00 $0.00
N $0.00 N $0.00
B $0.00 | $0.00
[ $0.00 | $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
] __ $0.00 1 $0.00
|
EQUIPMENT SUBTOTAL: $0.00 SUBCONTRACT SUBTOTAL: $0.00
J { |

Page 1




Job ID: S062323-2
Project: Valle Cruciscorev 11
e
IntolliBid
Takeoff
Vendor:
Phase: FIXTURES
Material Material Labor Labor
Item # Qty U/M Q/M Size Description Unit Result Unlt Result
0.00 EL101
0.00 CHG DB TO DB2 - 5 FIXTURES
0.00 _CHG D170 D13 - 8 FIXTURES
0.00 "ADD 1-DB
TITLE 1.00 EA M #12 INCAND CEILING RND HI-HAT/GYP/M-STD 0.0000 0.00 0.0000 0.00
120359 100 EA M 150w RND HI-HAT PRE WIRE 1-INCAND 0.0000 0.00 1.9500 1.95
160860 400 EA M #10x1" TEK SCREW 0.0291 0.12 0.0360 0.14
100096 100 EA M w1z PIGTAIL W/GRD SCREW 0.3706 037 " 0.0800 0.08
100108 100 EA M 18-12 _PSH-IN 2-WIRE CONN 0.2031 0.20 10.0439 0.04
100110 300 EA M 1812 “PSH-IN 4-WIRE CONN 0.2326 0.70 0.0659 0.20
10047 1500 FT M 3/4 EMT 1.2084 18.13 0.0698 1.05
161169 200 EA M 3/4 'EMT 1-HOLE STEEL STRAP 1.0805 216 0.0600 012
160860 200EA M #10x1" TEK SCREW 0.0291 0.06 0.0360 0.07
30252 200 EA M 34 " EMT STEEL-COMP COUPLING 0.7280 146 0.4185 0.84
30372 200EA M 3/4 EMT STEEL COMP CONNECTOR 3.2648 6.53 0.2100 0.42
70033 50.00 FT M 12 THHN/THWN CU (STR) 0.2247 11.23 0.0072 036
0.00 EL102
0.00 ' CHG DG TO DG4 -4 FIXTURES
0.00
0.00 EL601 - FIXTURES SCHEDULE ADD TYPES
0.00 DB2 DG2 DG3 D12
pha ’B2 DG2 DG
0.00 EL103
0.00 CHG D3 TO D32 - 13 FIXTURES
0.00
0.00 EP502
0.00 REMOVE GEN PAD DETAIL

Lake Electric Co. Inc.

4362 Providence Mill Road
PO Box 642
Maiden, NC 28650

Denver, NC 28037

Phone: 828-970-6200

Web:

Pagé 1o0f3



Takeoff Report: Valle Crucis co rev 11

Phase: FIXTURES

Material Material Labor Labor
Item # Qty U/M Q/M Size Description Unit Result Unit Result
000 ' i
0.00 EP6D1
0.00 AMP CHANGE - NC
0.00
0.00 EP602
0.00 MADE SPARE BREAKER
0.00 B B -
0.00 EP603
0.00 'CHG AMP - NC
0.00 DLNA? ADD BREAKER
180805 100 A M 20/1 GFCI BOLT-ON BREAKER 198.4168 198.42 0.5100 0.51
0.00
0.00 'EPS06 NC??
0.00
0.00 EP701
0.00 REMOVE PAD NOTE - ADD STEEL FRAME
0.00 ADD NOTE 20 - GND STEEL PLATE FORM
TITLE 1500 EA M 5#6 0.0000 0.00 0.0000 0.00
70036 75.00 FT M . ~ THHN/THWN CU (STR) 09723 72.92 0.0165 124
100003 6O0EA M 6. AL/CU CRIMP LUG 1-HOLE 16.3014 97.81 0.4500 2.70
. 203 ALLU CRIMP LUG 1-H( _SEALEL —
0.00 ET101
0.00 ' RELOCATED DATA - NC_
0.00
0.00 ET102
0.00 ADD NOTE 31 DATA
TITLE 1.00 EA M 1" EMT/P-STRING  2G STUB/4"sq JWD-STD £ 0.0000 0.00 0.0000 0.00
150042 1.00 EA M 2-1/8'D 30.3-CI 4"5Q  1"-KO NO BRKT 4.5017 4.50 0.4000 0.40
150069 100 EA M 5/8"RISE 7.5-CI 2G 4 sq PLASTER-RING 2.1247 212 0.2500 0.25
160860 200 EA M #10x1" TEK SCREW 0.0201 0.06 0.0360 0.07.
10048 5000 FT M 1 EMT 19271 96.36 0.0763 3.81
30293 500 EA M 1 EMT STEEL-COMP COUPLING 1.1180 5.59 0.5580 2.79
161200 1000 EA M 1 NAIL STRAPS 0.7074 7.07 0.0450 045
30373 200EA M 1 EMT STEEL COMP CONNECTOR 0.9750 1.95 0,249 0.48
30196 200EA M 1 'PLASTIC BUSHING 0.3245 0.65 0.2700 0.54
! Provist slat 4 i Road Phone: B74
PO Box 642 Denver, NC 28037 Web:

Maiden, NC 28650

Page 2 of 3



Takeoff Report: Valle Crucis co rev 11

Phase: FIXTURES

Material Material Labor Labor
Item # Qty U/M Q/M Size Description Unit Result Unit Result
500106 60.00 FT M PULL LINE (STRING) 0.0427 2.56 0.0036 0.22
0.00 ADD NOTE W DATA - 2 - NC -
0.00
0.00 ADD NOTE 32 PHONE ELEV - 1
TITLE 1.00 EA M 1" EMT/P-STRING 2G STUB/4"sq /WD-STD 0.0000 0.00 0.0000 0.00
150042 100 EA M 2-1/8'D 30.3-C 460 1"- KO NOBRKT 45017 450 10,4000 0.40
150069 1.00 EA M S5/8"RISE 7.5-CI 2G 4"SQ PLASTER-RING 2.1247 212 0.2500 0.25
160860 200 A M #10x1" TEK SCREW 1 0.0291 0.06 0.0360 0.07
10048 50.00 FT M o1 EMT 1.9271 96.36 0.0763 3.81
30293 500 EA M 1 EMT STEEL-COMP COUPLING 1.1180 559 0.5580 2.79
161200 10.00 EA Mo NAIL STRAPS 0.7074 7.07 0.0450 0.45
30373 200 EA M 1 EMT STEEL COMP CONNECTOR 0.9750 185 10.2400 0.48
30196 2.00 EA M o1 PLASTIC BUSHING 0.3245 0.65 0.2700 0.54
500106 60.00 FT M PULL LINE (STRING) 0.0427 2.56 0.0036 o2
0.00 ET103
0.00 ADD NOTE W TO PHONE - N&
0.00
0.00 ET104
0.00 ADD NOTE W TO PHONE - NC
e SN W 10 FHONE - NC
0.00 ET105
0.00 ADD NOTE W TO PHONE - NC
0.00
Phase Totals: 651.83 27.74
Job Totals: 651.83 27.74

Lake Electric Co. Inc.

4362 Providence Mill Road
PO Box 642
Maiden, NC 28650

Denver, NC 28037

Phone: 828-970-6200
Web:

Page 3 of 3



Rexel USA, Inc. d/b/a Mayer

4201 Taggar Creek Road Suite Charlotte NC 28208 Br#
Fax: 704-529-0255

"Purchaser" Date:
To: LAKE ELECTRIC CO. INC. Ship To: LAKE ELECTRIC
PO BOX 642 VALLE CRUCUS
DENVER , NC 28037
Project Name: Customer Contact: BRENDA SIGMON
Job: VALLE CRUCIS ADD Mayer Contact: Brawley, Craig

intemet: www.mayerelectric.com
R QUOTATION VOID AFTER DATE: February 21, 2024

PIPE AND WIRE QUOTE VOID AFTER: February 15, 2024

Line | Quantity item Number Description Type Price Per Total
1 5 | DELETE TYPE DB 80.0000-] EA 400.00-
2 5 1 ADD TYPE DB2 80.0000| EA 400.00
3 4 | DELETE TYPE DG 180.0000-{ EA 720.00-
4 4 | ADD TYPE DG2 180.0000] EA 720.00
5 21 | DELETE TYPE DJ 80.0000-] EA 1,680.00-
6 21 | ADDTYPDJ2 80.0000| EA 1,680.00
7 2 3| ADD TYPE DG3 336.6700| EA [673.341-046:64
8 1 | ADDTYPE DB 80.0000] EA 80.00
Freight Terms: FOB Shipping Point Quuotation Total: L 1,090.01
Freight Terms: Prepald & Allowed: N Prepald & Charged: N Spare Parts Included: N

Prices are subject to change at any time prior to shipment unless agreed to otherwise in writing by and authorized representative of Seller. Orders related to this
quotation must be received, accepted and released by Seller within 48 hours of issuance of the Quotation and are subject to avallability. Many of Seller's
manufacturing partners have advised that until further notice they reserve the right to amend the delivery date, price, scope and quantity of supply and/ar other
terms and conditions set out in their offer or quotation and Seller equally reserves the right o pass through any such changes from its manufacturing partners to
the Buyer. Delivery dates ane only estimates. Seller shall not be liable for failure to meet such dates resulfing from product shortages or manufachiring delays. Be
advised that Seller considers and changes imposed by its manufacturing partners and other vendors oulside Seller’s reasonable control and therefore subject to
Force Majeure provisions or similar common law dactrines such as “frustration” or “impossibllity”. Seller's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sale are incorporated
by reference into this quotation and are available at . ToierToseacne e OFUpon request, Seller shall mean the entity set forth on the face of the
[Quotation] or [Order Acknowledgment]

ACCEPTANCE

]

Mayer Contact:

pate: ‘Rexel USA, inc. d/b/a Mayer

amail: cbrawley@mayerelectric.com
Page 1of 1 Forn Effactive Date: February 1, 2017


nwhiddon
Line

nwhiddon
Text Box
2

nwhiddon
Line

nwhiddon
Text Box
673.34


H&M
CONSTRUCTORS ~ "nee Oorder Propos!

A Division of MB HAYNES Corporation

Project: Valle Crucis School COR #: | 36 |

Date:|  8/7/2023 |

Description of Change: Changes to electrical due to Revision 12

H&M Material: Subtotals

1. Total Cost of Materials (Attach Backup) 0.00

2. Sales Tax 6.75% 0.00

3. Overhead & Profit 15% 0.00 0.00
H&M Labor:

4. Total Man Hour Cost (Attach Backup) 0.00

5. Labor Burden  (Enter Percentage) 41% 0.00

6. Overhead & Profit 15% 0.00 0.00

H&M Equipment Rental:

7. Equipment / Equipment Rental (Attach Backup) 0.00
8. Overhead & Profit 15% 0.00 0.00

H&M Unit Prices:
9. Unit Price (If Applicable) 0.00 0.00

H&M Subcontractors:

10. Subcontractor (Attach Subcontractor Backup) 16,093.78
11. Overhead & Profit (On Subcontractors) 10% 1,609.38 17,703.16
| Grand Subtotal = 17,703.16
13. P&P Bonds (On Grand Subtotal) 2% 354.06
| Total of Proposal = 18,057.22

Time Extension Request: 0 IDays
Schedule Activity # Affected | Does this effect the critical path?

This Contractor agrees to perform the work outlined in this change proposal for the amount specified above

Eric Jones / VP Date:

Owner/Architect Date:




Subcontractor Name

Praoject: Vaile Crucis School

Change Order Proposal

COR#:] REV12Drwgs |

Date:{  8/4/2023 |

Description of Change: Misc Electrical including adding transformer -enclosed circuit breaker
Material: Subtotals

1. Total Cost of Materials {Attach Backup) $8,476.55

2. Sales Tax 6.75% $572.17

3. Overhead & Profit 10% $904.87 $9,953.59
Labor:

4. Total Man Hour Cost (Attach Backup) $3,922.31

5. Labor Burden  (35% is Allowed) 35% $1,372.81

6. Overhead & Profit 10% $529.51 $5,824.63
Equipment Rental:

7. Equipment / Equipment Rental {Attach Backup) $0.00

8. Overhead & Profit 10% $0.00 $0.00
Unit Prices:

9. Unit Price (If Applicable) $0.00 $0.00
Subcontractors:

10. Subcontractor (Attach Subcontractor Backup) $0.00

11. Overhead & Profit (On Subcontractors) 10% $0.00 $0.00

{ Grand Subtotal =]  $15,778.21
13. Bond If Required {On Grand Subtotal} 2% $315.56
I Total of Proposal =|  $16,093.78

Time Extension Request: 0 IDays
Schedule Activity # Affected 0 | Does this effect the critical path?

This Contractor agrees to perform the work outlined in this change proposal for the amount specified above

Subcontractor LAKE ELECTRIC CO., INC.

Date:

8/4/2023




H&M COP {Details)

Subcontractor Name Change Order Proposal {Details)
l | E
Project:|Valle Crucis School COR #: REV 12 Drwgs
SCO #:/0 |
Date: 8/4/2023
1
Description of Change: Misc Electrical including adding transformer -enclosed circuit breaker
| l | | I |
MATERIALS LABOR
QrY DESCRIPTION UNIT | TOTAL |[MANHRS| DESCRIPTION | RATE |LABOR COST
1 Lot Attached $3,786.55 $3,78655| 20.89 |Supervisor $63.00 $1,316.07
1 Lot Gear $4,680.00 $4,69000| 4178 |Electrcian $41.13 $1,718.41
$0 00 Electrician $4113 $0 00
$0.00 | 41.78 |Apprentice $21.25 $887.83
$0.00 Apprentice $21.25 $0.00
$0.00 0.00 |Operator $52.00 $0 00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
MATERIAL SUBTOTAL:| $8,476.55 LABOR SUBTOTAL: $3,922.31
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2nd TIER SUB COSTS (SEE ATTACHED)
QrY DESCRIPTION RATE | 1OTAL DESCRIPTION [ COST
Backhoe $1,174.91 $0.00 $0.00
i Tamp $525.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0 00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
| $0.00 $0.00
EQUIPMENT lSUBTOTAL: $0.00 | SUBCONTRACT SUBTOTAL: $0.00
I

Page 1






























received
04.23.25


Eve.Szentesi
Text Box
received 04.23.25










Eve.Szentesi
Cloud

















OLD


nwhiddon
Text Box
OLD








Break


nwhiddon
Text Box
Break 


NEW


nwhiddon
Text Box
NEW








dadk:

34"

1 1/2" diam.
handrail req'd
by ADA.
fastened to
verticals

HM coordinate: route conduit for lighting at
east side of pedestrian bridge - see ES101

HM coordinate: mount lights- aim toward path

*

1 1/2" diam.
handrail req'd\

by ADA. O
fastened to
verticals

3



Eve.Szentesi
Ellipse

Eve.Szentesi
Text Box
HM coordinate:  route conduit for lighting at east side of pedestrian bridge - see ES101

Eve.Szentesi
Arrow

Eve.Szentesi
Text Box
HM coordinate: mount lights- aim toward path

Eve.Szentesi
Arrow

Eve.Szentesi
Ellipse

Eve.Szentesi
Text Box
1_1/2" diam. handrail req'd by ADA.  fastened to verticals

Eve.Szentesi
Arrow

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Dimension
1_1/2"

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Dimension
34"

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Ellipse

Eve.Szentesi
Line

Eve.Szentesi
Dimension
34"

Eve.Szentesi
Text Box
1_1/2" diam. handrail req'd by ADA.  fastened to verticals

Eve.Szentesi
Arrow


see markups from
previous


Eve.Szentesi
Snapshot

Eve.Szentesi
Text Box
see markups from previous submittal

Eve.Szentesi
Arrow

Eve.Szentesi
Polygon

Eve.Szentesi
Polygon

Eve.Szentesi
Polygon











taxes added on cover
sheet


mailto:rcottle@tank-depot.com
mailto:nwhiddon@h-mconstructors.com
mailto:rcottle@tank-depot.com
mailto:nwhiddon@h-mconstructors.com
nwhiddon
Callout
taxes added on cover sheet













nwhiddon
Cloud





work has been
subcontracted out by
Blankenship. This includes
labor, equipment and travel
for extra trip necessary.
NW/HM


nwhiddon
Callout
work has been subcontracted out by Blankenship. This includes labor, equipment and travel for extra trip necessary. NW/HM





added sleeve NW/HM

added sleeve NW/HM


nwhiddon
Callout
added sleeve NW/HM

nwhiddon
Callout
added sleeve NW/HM




mailto:info@installationgurusllc.com





























































































https://tintusa.tintprogroup.com/trunk/ar/ar_payment.aspx?c_id=1402&j_id=1413&transid=&psp=17829234
https://tintusa.tintprogroup.com/trunk/savesig2.aspx?j_id=1413&c_id=1402&s2=&option2=&option3=&tot1=0&tot2=0&tot3=0&jotaxable=True&psp=17829234&op1=&op2=&op3=&jd_id=916&sxns=&jobdoc=1413.916.QT.htm&nextpage=1413.916.QT.htm

AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

C. Assignment of Agreements for Valle Crucis Elementary School and the Emergency
Management Services Facility

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Clark Nexsen (Architects for the Valle Crucis Elementary School and EMS Facility) has been
acquired by Johnson, Mirmiran & Thompson, Inc., (JMT). The acquisition will require the
contracts with Clark Nexsen to be assigned to JMT. The County should see no change in the
service provided and should be seamless on our side. The Board will need to approve the
assignment of the contracts from Clark Nexsen to JMT.

Board approval is required to assign the contract agreements with Clark Nexsen to JMT for the
Valle Crucis Elementary School and the EMS facility.






























































MCLARK
Highlight
Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the 

MCLARK
Highlight
Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form document











































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

D. Boards and Commissions
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Recreation Commission

Ms. Elin Reuben, has resigned as the Mabel School representative on the Watauga County
Recreation Commission, effective immediately, due to her obligations and responsibilities at the
school. As Principal, she has recommended Abby Bumgarner to fill her unexpired term which
will end in June 2027. This is a first reading; however, Parks and Recreation Director, Ms. Keron
Poteat requested the second reading be waived and an appointment be made.




AGENDA ITEM 10:

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

E. Announcements
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

The Trustees of Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute have invited the Board of
Commissioners to a meeting on Wednesday, May 21, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. in the Instructional
Building on the Watauga Campus.

An Ethics for Elected Officials training course will be held via Zoom on Thursday, May 22, 2025,
from 10:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room. The course is required to be
taken by all Commissioners by December 2025. A quorum may be present for the training;
however, no County business will be conducted.

All county commissioners, managers, clerks, and county attorneys in Western North Carolina are
invited to join colleagues for an evening of networking, sharing experiences, and building
relationships with peers, NC Association of County Commissioners staff, and School of
Government faculty and staff. The event will be held in Asheville on Thursday, May 22, 2025
from 5:30 to 7:30 pm.

AGENDA ITEM 11:

BREAK



AGENDA ITEM 12:

CLOSED SESSION

Attorney/Client Matters per, G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)



	Approval of Minutes:
	Approval of the May 20, 2025, Agenda
	Public Comment
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the FY 2026 Proposed Budget
	AppalCART Contracts for FY 2026
	Vaya Update
	Board of Elections Equipment Purchase Request
	Tax Matters
	Tax Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Break
	Closed Session
	050625 Minutes.pdf
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Agenda
	Public Comment
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on A Proposal to Repeal a 2024 Amendment to the Watauga County Building Code Ordinance Which Added the Wording “and all appendices therein”
	Watauga Medics Merger Request
	Appalachian State University Request for NC Hwy 105 Property Release
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Closed Session
	Adjourn

	Watauga BOCC Presentation Spring 2025.pdf
	Slide 1: Watauga Board of County Commissioners
	Slide 2: Vaya Health Plan/Medicaid Updates
	Slide 3: Vaya Total Care
	Slide 4: Vaya Total Care
	Slide 5: Child & Family Specialty Plan
	Slide 6: Hurricane Helene Recovery
	Slide 7: HOPE 4 NC GRANT PROGRAM DESCRIPTION​
	Slide 8: HURRICANE IMPACTED COUNTIES WITHIN VAYA’S CATCHMENT​
	Slide 9: Watauga Data for FY 25-26 Q2
	Slide 10
	Slide 11:  
	Slide 12: Watauga BH services
	Slide 13

	CO 6 backup combined_o.pdf
	VC COR #34 (Lake Rev 11) Revised 3.5.25 EJ Final
	VC COR #36 (Lake REV 12) Revised 8.7.24 EJ Final
	VC COR #87 (Nature Bridge) (Redesign Boardwalk) Revision 2 EJ Final 4.16.25 received 04.23.25
	VC COR #94 (Fire Tank NB Anti Vortex) Revised 5.5.25
	VC COR #102 (HM) (Downspout Boot Credit) Revised EJ Final
	VC COR #103 (Blankenship) (Volleyball Sleeves)Revised 1.23.25 EJ to Review
	VC COR #120 (Fifth Element) (Sprinkler Head Kitchen) EJ Final
	VC COR #124 (HM) (Fry Reglet Credit) Rev 3 EJ Final
	VC COR #132 (Bolton) (SK-2 Faucet) EJ Final
	VC COR #134 (Bolton) (Lab Sink Mixing Valve) EJ Signed
	VC COR #136 (240F Frosting) (A-1 Glass) Revised EJ Signed




